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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates nine academies in Wolverhampton, Dudley, Sandwell and South Staffordshire for pupils
between the ages of 3 and 11. There were over 3,240 children on roll during the academic year. During the
academic year, Foxyards Academy (Dudley 1.5 form entry school) and Hateley Heath Academy (Sandwell 2
form entry school) joined the trust.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution
The Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the
Trust.

The Trustees of Manor Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these financial statements are
approved are included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

c. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted under the terms
of the Articles of Association. On 24 August 2018, the Trust adopted new Articles of Association, incorporating
the model articles for inclusion of Church of England Schools within the Multi Academy Trust.
The number of Trustees shall be not less than three but shall not be subject to any maximum.

The appointment of Trustees in the latest Articles of Association allows the Trust board to be comprised of the

following:
. The Members shall appoint up to 7 Trustees;
B CECET shall appoint up to 3 Trustees provided that the total number of Trustees appointed under this

Article would not thereby exceed 25% of the total number of Trustees;
. The Chief Executive Officer;
. Trustees appointed under Article 50 and 50AA acting jointly and with the consent of CECET may appoint

up to 2 Co-opted Trustees.

The term of office for any Trustee shall be four yéars, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief
Executive Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-
appointed or re-elected.

Future Trustees shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, under the new Articles of Association. The
Board will give consideration to the skills and experience of the existing Trustees when considering future
appointments.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction of all new Members / Trustees will depend upon their existing experience. Where
necessary, induction will provide training on charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All new Trustees will
be given a tour of the trust's key sites with a chance to meet stakeholders. All Trustees are provided with an
induction folder containing documents allowing them to undertake their role.

e. Organisational structure

The Trustees are responsible for exercising oversight of the governance and management of the Trust. In
exercising their responsibilities, Trustees consider the advice given by the Chief Executive Officer other
executive leaders and the Chairs of the Local Governing Bodies (LGBs) as appropriate.

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
Trust by the use of results and budget and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust and capital
expenditure. The Local Governing Bodies are responsible for implementing the policies laid down by the
Trustees and reporting back to them. They scrutinise the performance of the schoo! and oversee the quality of
Education in their individual schools.

The CEO is the school's Accounting Officer. The Scheme of Delegation gives full details of all delegated
responsibilities.

f. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Arrangements for setting the pay and remuneration of the Trust's key management personnel are reviewed
annually by the Pay Committee and approved by the Trustees. The Trust follows the pay arrangements for
maintained schools in England and Wales for teachers. The Trust's pay policy is based on the national agreed
pay scales as outlined in the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document.

g. Trade union facility time

The Academy Trust had no employees who were relevant union officials during the year.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

During the course of the period to August 2021, regular communications have been sent to all employees.
During periods when the country was not in National Lockdowns this took the form of weekly in person staff
briefings at all schools, and regular bulletins on our online ‘virtual school’ environments.

When the country went into lockdown, in-person briefings were replaced with regular email updates from school
and trust leaders, as well as some video-conference meetings.

Staff briefings are intended for all school staff, and employees are briefed on both matters pertinent to their role,
and of general interest regarding the trust's operations, including the trust's performance in terms of its
educational goals.

In addition to regular weekly briefings, we have various professional development days during the year, for all
staff in all areas of the school. At these events there are briefings given to staff from various senior staff
members, updating them on a variety of issues and areas.

In accordance with the Trust's equal opportunities policy, the Trust has long established fair employment
practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff.

i. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The Trust engages with suppliers on a fair and transparent basis and foliows a process of quotes and tenders in
line with those detailed in the Financial Scheme of Delegation. The Trust aims for all suppliers to be provided
with an official purchase order from the Trust and for invoices to be paid timely and within the credit terms stated
on the supplier's invoice. Business relationships have been built with a number of key suppliers that enables the
Trust to demonstrate best value, especially when purchasing supplies on behalf of the whole Trust.

Engagement with key suppliers was particularly important during the COVID-19 pandemic to ensure that, in line
with PPN02/20 and PPNO04/20, the Trust was satisfied that a value for money case was made by virtue of
securing continuity of supply of critical services in the medium and long term e.g. catering services and sports
coaches.

The Trust always works with our suppliers, and pays all invoices within 30 days of receipt. Many of our suppliers
are local and so in supporting their business, this also supports the local community.

The Trust also works with the local communities for each academy. The Local Governing Body for each school
include members of the community.

j- Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Manor Multi Academy Trust has minimal connected party transactions. All trustees complete a ‘Register of
Interest’ form when they become a trustee (and then annually), to enable the trust to identify where any related
parties may arise. All senior Leaders in all schools and all LGB members also complete an annual ‘Register of

Interest’ form.

In the event that a related party is identified, all decisions are still to be based on the tender process, but with
awareness and clarification of any interests, and any identified related parties would not participate in the
decision-making process.




Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of academies to advance for the
public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing Academies which shall offer a
broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include:

0] Academies other than those designated Church of England, whether with or without a designated religious
character; and

(ii) Church of England academies designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to
arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and in having regard to any advice and
following any directives issued by the Diocesan Board of Education, but in relation to each of the
Academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated Church of England.

Founded in 2015 Manor Multi Academy Trust originated from the highly successful school improvement and
partnership work led by Manor Primary School in Wolverhampton, a National Teaching School with a proven
track record of achieving the highest of standards and a reputation for supporting the development of many
schools locally improve.

Our Trust's aspiration is that every child who attends a school within our MAT attends a “Great School.” That all
pupils are nurtured, inspired and receive a world class education. Our goal is to ensure that every member of
staff receives the highest quality professional development and tailored support so they can be the best they can
be.

We are passionate about system-led change — our Trust is built upon the principle of schools supporting schools.
We are very open in our approach and readily share our resources and thinking, both within the family and with
our neighbouring schools.

Our mission is to inspire belief in everyone. Creating individual and collective futures, with an unswerving
commitment to our communities and beyond. We pledge to champion each other, together.

Our vision is to bring inspiration and innovation, with a courageous enthusiasm for excellence, in order to create
amazing futures, together.

Our Trust is committed to leading by example and lives by its unswerving commitment to our core values of
integrity, ambition, collaboration and inclusion.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust Has established a trust development plan for 2021-2025.

Our Trust Board has agreed five key strategic objectives which will support the growth and development of
Manor Multi Academy Trust over the next five years.

Objective 1: Ensuring every child in our Trust attends a "Great School!" All children receive the highest quality
Teaching and Learning and provision.

Objective 2: Provide all our staff the highest quality CPD so they can be the very best they can be.

Objective 3: Continually review the Trust Team to enable Manor Multi Academy Trust to provide schools with the
highest quality school improvement.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)
b. Objectives, strategies and activities (continued)

Objective 4: To ensure growth by sponsoring and improving schools in need and creating new school provision
where opportunities arise in our region.

Objective 5: Ensuring a financially sustainable Multi Academy Trust.
Development focus 2020-2021
Review Core Business Function

During 2020-2021 the CEO and a Trust Executive leader led a comprehensive review of the core central team.
The key purpose of this review was to:

. To identify current capacity and capability across the Trust central support team.
. To identify future capacity and capability needed for nine schools and any further growth.
. A review of systems and processes.

We sought support from RSC team who advised we approach well regarded local academies who are bigger
than us and more established than us. We identified support from three well regarded academies in our region
who provided us with highly skilled staff to lead the review for us to review: Finances; HR; Estates and ICT.

Review Timeline & Actions

MANOR MAT review timeline

2 &
SE
v  FE
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o5 §L¢
& < g

Series of meetings

. Individual meetings with School business managers

. Meetings with MAT support team

. Meeting with Executive leader and new to the MAT
Staff voice

. Senior leaders questionnaire

o MAT support team questionnaire
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)
b. Objectives, strategies and activities (continued)

The review was highly comprehensive and took us three months to complete. As a result of this review we have:
. Restructured the core central MAT team adding HR and finance capability and capacity to include
Director of operations; Head of Finance; Executive leader for compliance and policy,
. Added ICT capacity,

. Reviewed/ implemented range of finance and HR policy and procedure,

. Eliminated single points of failure in our core business function by distributing HR/ Finance
functions to our school business managers/ across core central team,

. Provided finance training to Heads and School business managers developing their capacity and
enabling systems and processes to be embedded across all of our schools,

. Revised all central team job descriptions,

. Developed organisation level agreements providing clarity of core offer from all services for our
schools.

Restructure of MAT Senior Leadership Team ('SLT')

We have restructured our MAT SLT team appointing an internal Deputy CEO to work in partnership with the
CEO to drive improvements across our Trust. The overall purpose of this post is to work in partnership with the
CEO in order to secure outstanding educational provision for its academies.

To provide leadership and management for educational and operational matters for Manor Trust Board and its
individual academies. To contribute as a senior member of the Trust Management team to ensure that all
academies are delivering the highest possible educational provision and achieving excellent outcomes for pupils
and students within the Trust. Be an effective ambassador for the trust in the region, taking a leading role in
identifying further opportunities for the benefit of all Trust academies. Develop a school improvement strategy
that enables all schools to be outstanding in all areas over time.

School Improvement of Our Academies

We have worked across all nine academies in our Trust continuing to drive improvements towards all academies
being judged outstanding in their first inspection. Our Executive Leaders, Deputy CEO and CEO have targeted
academies working in partnership with them to continue to improve the quality of education and outcomes for all

pupils.

Key achievements: .
. All Heads and SLTs across our schools have taken part in schools partnership training that is
enabling them to collaboratively address areas for improvement and evaluate the impact of this,
using the rigor of objective peer review and accountability.

. Rapidly growing pure coaching culture across all MAT schools enabling people in our schools to be
partnered in their on-going learning with leaders who provide a confidential thinking space for them
to be truly listened to, where their strengths are developed, and people are supported to create their
own solutions to challenges.

. All academies have embedded blended approach to Teaching and Learning that enriches and
supports education and assessment across all areas of the curriculum and enhances engagement
between teachers, pupils and parents both in and out of school using virtual classroom technology.

. Standardised teacher assessment across all academies implementing whole MAT approach
to monitoring attainment and progress using our Trust developed assessment framework.

. All academies have reviewed their curriculum ensuring it exceeds the requirements of the national
curriculum, provides creative pathways to achievement and develops pupils' social and cultural
capital.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

Teaching School Hub

Manor Primary School (founding school of MAT) was privileged to be awarded National Teaching School Hub
status following 10 years as being a national teaching school. The National Teaching School Hub ('TSH') is very
proud to serve South Staffordshire, Walsall and Wolverhampton Schools (all 267 schools). We are striving to
bring inspiration and innovation to all schools in our learning community - to transform the life chances of
children and young people through our relentless pursuit of excellence in every classroom, through every leader,
in every school. We are endeavouring to provide cutting-edge, evidence-informed CPD, developed to meet the
needs of the entire education community we serve, through the golden thread, from Initial Teacher Training to
Executive Leadership. Our delivery partner is Ambition Institute. They are working alongside us to deliver Early
Career Framework and the suite of National Professional Qualifications. We have partnerships with SHaW and
North Mids Maths Hubs and St John Bosco English Hub as well as regional research schools, Science and
Learning Partnerships and Ed-Tech Demonstrator Schools - all working together to serve the needs of every
school across our TSH region.

We have implemented the following governance structure for our HUB

MANOR MAT TRUST BOARD
MANOR PRIMARY  pegat entity)

TsH Sub-Commitiee

Tracy Whatmora (hManor MAY Directer); Jlic Mifls (T Manor Peimary); 1an
Rumble {Manor MAT Finance Committes)
Also in attendanca (nan-voting} . Anita Okt {CEQ Mme' MAT); ﬁm;w lvkmov ot TRk

170 MAIS {AGE T 31 tdutiTion Siraiegy and impeovernen ; Barbars
Rogars {Aaths Quitioulum Mubl

Role ﬂ TSN Commisten:
Teach portarmanta v KM; buciget;
developrraeds B strasegic droction
*  Hold TSK Team o aceount
*  Reportto Vewnl Boxd
*  Uphold contractasl gbliginions

Challenge Parinas
Ania jenting
Haybnidgs Teaching Schoot Hub

- K
o e

Roie 6f Challenge Partnes:
o Hib-wide QA work
«  Report ta Strategic Basd
o Reportito Trust Nord
*  Uphold ¢ontiactual oblygations

Strategic Partners

Sote 0f Sts atepic S0M0:
+  Track pestoirnance v KPN

Deteimine Wider Qffer bryond go'ten threod

HPA each othes L a1couR! ~ penr ehallengs and wgport

fobuit QA of T3H offer

Report to Comenittee

SUISAER Partvers W0t datsting redslioriships in oedity

Contider how eath member adopted - MOU A organtiationsl KPis loe esth memtier agreed

andigand aft.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)
c. Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with thé requirement in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have
due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. They
have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning its future
activities.

Many activities and programmes enable the objectives of the Trust to be realised. In addition to the quality of
teaching and learning, to ensure the outcomes and achievements for all students are recognised, a number of
advanced activities take place in the public benefit e.g.:

. Extensive range of extra curricular learning opportunities to all students
. Breakfast clubs and after school clubs

. Nursery education

. Parental engagement sessions

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

a. Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators of the Trust include pupil outcomes and academy Ofsted ratings, maximizing the
actual pupil numbers in line with the current PANs and the pupil attendance levels. Staff wellbeing is an
important indicator and this is measured via staff attendance and staff retention levels.

The key financial performance indicators are:

. Maintain sufficient cash reserves to fund projected expenditure;
. Unrestricted reserves levels carried forward at year-end;
. To continually review all resources expended or planned.

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of
the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.




Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

c. Promoting the success of the company

The directors of the company, as those of all UK companies, must act in accordance with a set of general duties.
These duties are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 which is summarised as follows:

A director of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole and in doing so, have regard to the likely
consequences of any decisions in the long term; the interests of the company’s employees; the need to foster
the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others; the impact of the company's
operations on the community and environment; the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high
standards of conduct; and the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

Details of how our Trustees have fulfilled these duties when dealing with strategic decisions are covered
elsewhere in the Trustees’ Report

d. Review of activities

Assessment
The Outcomes for academic year 2020/21 were as follows:

There are no external outcomes for 2020/21 due to COVID-19 with all statutory assessments being cancelled.

Attendance

The overall percentage of attendance during 2020/21 academic year for the Trust's academies were:

Brindley 96.8%

Foley 97.2%

Hill Avenue 96.4%
East Park 94.5%
Manor 96.2%

St Albans 94.0%

St Thomas 96.4%
Hateley Heath 94.5%
Foxyards 95.95%

® ® o o o o o e o

Site and equipment

A number of site and ICT investments have been started or completed over the course of the year including a
number of successful Capital Improvement Fund (CIF) projects that the Trust were awarded in the 2020/21
bidding round. The majority of these were started at the end of the academic year. The site and ICT projects this
year included:

Foley Infants: Whole site complete new flat roof: Final cost of project £263,170

Foley Infants: Whole of site complete new heating and hot/cold system: Final cost of project £437,802
Foxyards: Whole site complete new flat roof: Final cost of project £263,523

St Albans: Whole site complete new roof: Final cost of project £290,735

St Thomas: Whole site complete new roof: Final cost of project £171,084

St Thomas: Whole site new perimeter fence: Final cost of project £54,061

v : Page 10



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Donated assets

Laptop Chro | Chrome Ca 4G 4G
iPad iPad Numb Laptop | meb Book se Case Rout Router | Total Each
School Number | Value er Value ook Value s Value | ers Value School
‘Manor 72 | £246.00 £300 72 £3.00 10 £37.00 £18,298.00
Hill Avenue ) 75 | £246.00 £300 75 | £3.00 10 | £37.00 £19,045.00
12
East Park 125 £246.00 £300 S5 £3.00 10 £37.00 £3 i,495.00
St Thomas 24 | £246.00 £300 24 i £3.00 10 | £37.00 £6,346.00
St Albans 47 £246.00 £300 | 47 £3.00 10 £37.00 | = £12,073.00
F0|EY 4] £246.00 £300 0 £3.00 0 £37.00 £0.00
Brindley 30 £246.00 £300 30 £3.00 5 £37.00 £7,655.00
| Eoxyards 34 | £246.00 6| £300 40 | £3.00 5 | £37.00 £10,469.00
_m Heath . 14 | £246.00 48 £300 31 £216 93 £3.00 0 £37.00 £24,819.00
Total
Value
(all) £130,200.00

e. Factors relevant to achieve objectives

The factors relevant to the Trust to allow it to achieve its objectives are:

. The quality of teaching and learning is maintained at the very highest standards;

. Robust monitoring and challenge of the data by the Senior Leadership Team and the Trustees;
. That funds are accurately targeted at the key improvement priorities;

. That the principal risks and uncertainties identified are mitigated.

Financial review
a. Review of financial performance and reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of the income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves.

The policy of the Trust Board is to maintain a minimum level of free reserves that is equivalent to 5% of annual
income, and a maximum of 20% of annual income, to provide a stable base for the continuing operation of the
Trust whilst ensuring that excessive funds are not accumulated. An academy holding reserves outside of these
parameters must present a business case for doing so, approved by the Trust Board.

Future pupil numbers are considered to be stable and through future Government funding the Trustees are
satisfied that current reserves will be sufficient to ensure a healthy financial position in the medium term. The
Trust's current level of free reserves is detailed in the Statement of Funds note contained within this report.

Page i1



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

b. Investment policy

The Trust approved a revised Investment Policy in September 2020. The Trust aims to manage its cash
balances to ensure that adequate funds are available to meet the day to day requirements of its operations. In
addition, the Trust aims to invest surplus cash funds to optimise returns, but ensuring that the investments are
risk free and easily accessible. Funds are currently held in low interest bank accounts with Lloyds. No surplus
cash funds were invested during the year.

¢. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees continue to review the Risk Register on a regular basis. The key risks of concern to the Trust
continue to be as follows:

. Presence of other organisations with similar objects and little scope for differentiation and
competing for the same sources of income;

. Reserves level risk;

. Changes to, or absence of, leadership and management and other key staff;

. Risk that employers’ pension contribution rates will increase further, and that the significant deficits
and annual repayments to the schemes will continue to impact on the funding available for pupils.

. Risk of the impact an uncontrollable event will have on the Trust e.g. recession, war, oil crisis or
pandemic.

Through the risk management processes established at Manor Multi Academy Trust, the Trust Board is satisfied
that the major risks have been adequately mitigated where necessary. It is recognised that systems and
procedures can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that major risks have been adequately
managed. The main processes and controls used by Multi Academy Trust are:

Formal agendas for all Trust Board and Local Governing Body meetings;

Written scheme of delegation;

Comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting and management accounting;

Established organisational structure and lines of reporting;

Formal written policies;

Clear authorisation and approval levels;

Implementation of vetting and clearance procedures as required by law for the safe-guarding

of children and young people; and

Engagement of external auditors to examine the financial statements and financial practices of the
school.

d. Fundraising

The Trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it operates. The
Trust does not work with professional fundraisers or companies who carry out fundraising on its behalf. In the
circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to separate and protect funds.
The Trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 and
legal rules, and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership Team level in compliance
with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure that fundraising is open, honest and
respectful, protecting the public from undue pressure to donate. Any complaints are handled and monitored
through the Trust's complaints procedure. During the year no complaints or issues have arisen as a result of
fundraising activities.

The majority of the trust's income is funding from the DfE, ESFA and LA's (for EYFS funding) Additional funding
is received via grant applications. All fundraising conforms to the recognised fundraising standards. No
complaints have been received during the year and there are no areas of fundraising that place undue pressure
on others to donate.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

e. Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2021 2020
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):
Gas 2,778,478 1,650,689
Electricity 748,742 573,787
Transport fuel - 2,081
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumption 508.91 303.51
Total scope 1 508.91 303.51
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity 158.98 133.77
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Business travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles - 0.58
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 667.89 437.86
Intensity ratio:
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil 0.22 0.20

The Trust has followed and used the following quantification and reporting methodologies:

. the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard; and
) the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The chosen intensity ratio is total gross emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil, the recommended ratio
for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency:

During the course of 2020/21 the Trust submitted a number of bids for CIF projects, the vast majority of which
were for projects that would reduce energy consumption by improving the quality of the heating systems or
roofing projects. These are detailed on page 10.

f. Plans for future periods
The current strategy of the Trust is to grow further via a mixture of sponsored and converter schools and in

2020/21 Foxyards Primary School located within Dudley Local Authority and Hateley Heath Primary School within
Sandwell Local Authority joined our Trust.

Page 13



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by.Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 Augtist 2024

Employees and disabled persons

Manor Mulli Academy Trust values employee voice and encourages the involvement of our employees through
regular mestings for example through SLT/ Middle leadership and departmental meetings which enable key
issues to be ralsed and discussed and our vision and values to be continually reinforced.

Manor Multi Academy Trust is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all. As such as part of our
Recrujlment and Seleclion Policy we will make every effort to accommodate any requests for adjustments in
order to enable disabled persons are given full and fair considerations when vacancles atise, having regard to
their suitabllity for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to support them
to stay In employment such as through the use of occupational health to consider reasonable adjustments.

During the course of employment within Manof MAT we seek to work with employees, taking account of thelr
personal circumstances, to ensureé approprliate CPD and promotion opportunities are available to support them
to reach their full pofential, Please refer to our Equalities stalement which outlines our guiding principles for

fulfiling our statutory duties.
Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

° there is no relevant audit information of which the chgrilable company's auditors are unaware, and
v that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken lo make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to eslablish that the auditors are-aware of that information.

Auditors

The auditors, Dains LLP, have indicated their willingness to ¢ontinue in office. The designated Trusteés will
prepose a motion reappointing the auditors at:a meeting of the Trustees.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company direclors, on 7 December 2021 and signed ori its behalf by:
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Manor Multi Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Manor Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year.
Effective oversight has been maintained between meetings, especially during the COVID-19 pandemic, by the
Chief Executive Officer holding regular telephone conversations and virtual meetings with key Trustees including
the Chair and Vice-chair. They are kept updated, and provide advice on, key decisions made between formal
meetings of the Trustees.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
D Coles, Chair 7 7
M Sharif, Vice Chair 7 7
A Cliff, Chief Executive Officer 7 7
A J Dibble 6 7
A J Pritchard 7 7
K Morgan 5 7
M | Morris 5 7
| C D Rumble 6 7
H Smith 6 7
Revd N E Watson (resigned 30 May 2021) 2 5
Dr T Whatmore 5 7

The work of the Board during this academic year has primarily focussed on maintaining the exceptionally high
standards of achievement at Manor Primary School and providing support to East Park Academy and Hill
Avenue Academy that enabled them to both achieve Ofsted ratings of Outstanding in the previous academic
year. The board have also worked hard on progressing both the educational outcomes and teaching
environment for the four academies that joined the Trust in the previous academic year. For sponsored
conversions the board also provided the roll of Local Governing Body for these academies, until it was felt they
were in a more secure position, we are pleased to confirm that all academies within the Trust now have their own
Local Governing Bodies. There is still Trustee representation on each of the Local Governing Bodies.

Attendance levels this year have been maintained at a high level with total attendance at Board of Trustees
meetings being at 84% (87% in 2019/20) and attendance at Finance Committee being 96% (100% in 2019/20)

The skills of the Trustees and members of the Local Governing Bodies are continually monitored and new
appointments have, and will continue to be, based on a skills audit. All Trustees and Governors had access to a
comprehensive training programme purchased from an external provider to accommodate all potential CPD
opportunities.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

The type of financial data that is used by the board includes a report produced by the Fihance Director to each
meeting of the Finance Committee, which provides them with a detailed analysis of the most recent monthly
management accounts, updated budget projections including KPIs (e.g. staffing as a % of income, estimated
reserves as a % of income), cash flow position and future forecast information and updates on pupil ‘numbers
and pupil number projections and the potential impact on funding and budgets. The board finds this acceptable
as, for each meeting of the committee, the most up to date information is made available in advance, the
Finance Director presents the information in detail and committee attendees have the opportunity to interrogate
the financial information and ask questions.

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to regulate and control
the financial affairs of the Trust. The committee is responsible for setting the Trust's annual budget in the light of
the School's Development Plan, conducting an annual review of the Trust's financial management arrangements
and financial procedures, entering into and monitoring contract performance and reviewing any charges that the
Trust makes, ensuring they comply with statutory limitations.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Finance Committee was as follows:

Trustee : Meetings attended Out of a possible
A CIiff 4 4
D Coles, Chair 4 4
K Morgan 4 4
M | Morris 4 4
| Rumble 4 4
M Sharif 3 4
Dr T Whatmore 4 4

The Audit Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to report on the
operation of the systems of control, discharge of the Trustee’s financial responsibilities and review of the risk
register.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Audit Committee was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

A CIiff

D Coles

K Morgan, Chair
M | Morris

| C D Rumble
Dr T Whatmore

WwWWwwww
WWwWW W w

The Pay Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to determine annual
salary progression for eligible members of staff.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Pay Committee was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
D Coles, Chair 1 1
M | Morris 1 1
M Sharif 1 1
Dr T Whatmore 1 1

Page 16



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. All traded service level agreements have again been reviewed, and these have been replaced, or
removed altogether, where they have not represented value for money to the Trust;

. Supplier contracts that came to an end during the year have been reviewed and these have been
re-negotiated or not renewed where they have not represented value for money;

. Reviewing major contracts and negotiating new deals when these come to an end, especially where
a Trust wide purchase would offer an increased discount to that if purchasing for an individual
academy;

. The staffing structures have been reviewed to allow the Trust to take on additional academies, and

this has initially been funded via a successful Trust Capacity Grant application. This has allowed
staff and best practice to be shared across all the Trust's academies. This includes, but is not
limited to, support for leadership and management, finance, business, human resources,
governance and clerking, premises, ICT, GDPR and data management;

. The Trust has robust monitoring and purchasing systems in place to ensure that wastage is kept to
a minimum;

. Ensuring management accounts were produced monthly and presented in detail to the Finance
Committee at regular intervals across the academic year.

. The CEO requested an SRMA review implementing outcomes to increase financial efficiencies and
VFM;

. The CEO is an NLE and brought in an income of £20,000 to the Trust.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Manor Multi Academy Trust for the year 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

Page 17



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

) comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Service4Schools

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of
checks on the academy trust’s financial and other systems.

As determined by the Board of Trustees, the schedule of testing for this year was to include:
core finance transactional testing covering the following areas:
. Payroll
Purchases
Contracts
Capital income
Income
Accounting System
Reporting

The purpose of the scrutiny was to provide the Directors with an on-going independent oversight of the Trust's
financial affairs and to provide the Trustees with independent assurance that:

. the financial responsibilities of the Directors are being properly discharged resources are managed
in an efficient, economical, and effective manner

o sound systems of internal financial control are being maintained

. financial considerations are fully taken into account in reaching decisions

On a termly basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance Committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities, and termly
prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, the key findings, recommendations -
and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

The internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned.




Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chlef Executive Officer has responsibllity for reviewing the efféctiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

° the work of the external auditor;
° the work of the internal auditor;
° lhe work of the exscutive managers within the Trusl who have responsibility for the development and

maintehance of the intefnal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the syslem of internal
control by the Finance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contihuous-improvement of the

system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2021 and signed on their behalf by:

A
.1
PR

C /Ao, &

s

A CHiff
Accounting Officer
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Manor Multi Académy Trust
{A Company Limlited by Guaraitee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Comgpliance

As Accounting Officer of Manor Multi Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
Board of Trustees and the Educatlion & Skllis Funding Agency (ESFA) of materlal Irregularity, impropriely and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding recelved by the Trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the Tiust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustees are able lo identify any material irregular or improper use of all
funds by the Trust, or matefial non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding

agreement and the Academies Flnancial Handbook-2020.

I confirm that no Instances of material irregularity, Impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are Identified fler the date of this statement, these will be notified to.the Board of

Trustees and ESFA.

A Clff
Accounting Officer
Date: 7 December 2021
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

The Trustees (who are also the ‘directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financlal statements in accordarice with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdo_m ‘Accounting
‘Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial stalerments for each fihanclal year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charftable company and of ils incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expengliture, for thal pericd. In preparing thess financlal statements, the Trustees are

required to:

° select sullable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; o '

® observe the methods and principles of the Charitles SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction’
2020 to 2021;

° make judgements and accounting estimates thal are reasonable and prudent;

° state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any mateilal departures
disclosed and explained In the financial statements;

s prepare the financlal statements on the going concern basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in buslness.

The Trustees are responslble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006.. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention.and detection of fraud and other Irregularities.

The Trustees are responsjble for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriely and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants recelved from ESFA/DfE 'have been applied for the.

purposes (ntended.
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporale and financial information

included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the Uniled Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisfation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2021 and signed on lts behalf by:

Coles.
héir of rustees
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Manor Multi Academy
Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Manor Multi Academy Trust (the 'trust’) for the year ended 31
August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Manor Multi Academy
Trust (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

) the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

) certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Manor Multi Academy
Trust (continued)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

. the senior statutory auditor ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and
other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the Academy sector;

. we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the

financial statements or the operations of the company, including the financial reporting legislation,
Companies Act 20086, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and health and
safety legislation;

. we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and
. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained

alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company’'s financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

. considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations;

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

. tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in
Note 2 were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions;

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

. reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the company’s legal advisors;
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Manor Multi Academy
Trust (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements (continued)

Because of the Inherent limitations of ‘an audit, there Is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misslalement in the flnanclal statements or non-compliance with regulation. This fisk
Increases the more that compllance with a law or regulation Is removed from the ‘events and transaclions
reflected m the financial stalements, as we will be less llkely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, colluslon, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the .audit of the financial statements is located-on the Financlal
Reporling Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibllities. This description forms part of our

Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the. charitable Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been uhdertakeh so that.we might state to the charitable Trust's
members those matters we are required 1o slate to them'in an Auditors' Report and for no othet purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibillty to anyone other than the charitable
Trust and Its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinlons we have formed,

ownsend FCA FCCA (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
Dains LLP

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Birmingham
7 December 2021
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Manor Multi Academy Trust
and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 September 2018 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
‘and income received by Manor Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Manor Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Manor Multi Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Manor Multi Academy Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manor Multi Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and the
Reporting Accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Manor Multi Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 January 2016 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Trust's income and expenditure.
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‘Manor Multl Acadermy Trust
(A Gompany Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Manor Multi Academy Trust
and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continuad)

Congclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come (o our attention which suggest in all material respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the year-1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them,

e
Dalns LLP

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Date: 7 December 2021
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital grants: 3

Transfer from local authority

on conversion 275,106 (3,408,924) 13,983,158 10,849,340 -

Other donations and capital

grants 90,493 - 723,969 814,462 1,545,907
Other trading activities 5 15,427 - - 15,427 25,798
Investments 6 193 - - 193 1,823
Charitable activities: 4

Funding for the Trust's

educational operation 189,484 15,197,270 - 15,386,754 12,207,455
Teaching schools 32 33,338 129,477 - 162,815 136,158
Total income 604,041 11,917,823 14,707,127 27,228,991 13,917,141
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 13,070 - - 13,070 35,047
Charitable activities:

Trust educational operatidns 6,556 15,764,624 1,088,632 16,859,812 13,550,079
Teaching schools 32 13,020 129,477 - 142,497 90,059
Total expenditure 7 32,646 15,894,101 1,088,632 17,015,379 13,675,185
Net income/ (expenditure) 571,395 (3,976,278) 13,618,495 10,213,612 241,956
Transfers between funds 19 (168,069) (287,113) 455,182 - -
Other recognised losses:

Actuarial losses on defined

benefit pension schemes 28 - (1,492,000) - (1,492,000) (896,000)
Net movement in funds 403,326 (5,755,391) 14,073,677 8,721,612 (654,044)
Reconciliation of funds:

Total funds brought forward 1,423,721 (7,710,533) 28,506,184 22,219,372 22,873,416
Net movement in funds 403,326 (5,755,391) 14,073,677 8,721,612 (654,044)
Total funds carried forward 1,827,047 42,579,861

(13,465,924)

30,940,984

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 31 - 63 form part of these financial statements.

22,219,372
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 09323792

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2021

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

2021
Note £
14 42,159,363
42,159,363
15 18,736 -
16 1,570,975 2,424,483
1,723,551 1,287,846
3,313,262 3,712,329
17 (983,594) (1,268,573)
2,329,668
44,489,031
18 (213,047)
44,275,984
28 (13,335,000)
30,940,984
19 42,579,861 28,506,184
19 (130,924) 25,467
19 (13,335,000) (7,736,000)
19 29,113,937
19 1,827,047

30,940,984

2020

27,511,616

27,511,616

2,443,756

29,965,372

29,955,372

(7,736,000)

22,219,372

20,795,651
1,423,721

22,219,372
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2021

The financial statements on pages 28 to 67 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for |ssue on 7
December 2021 and are signed on their behalf, by:

The notes on pages 32 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 32 to 67 form part of these financial statements

Note

21
23

22

24, 25

2021 2020

£ £

1,205,129  (1,455,195)

(887,568) 979,536
118,144 -

435,705 (475,659)

1,287,846 1,763,505

1,723,551

1,287,846

Page 31



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

13

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Manor Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees. assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

13

1.4

1.5

Income (continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of premises, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the Trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when the risks
and rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as a transfer
on conversion within Donations and Capital Grants to the net assets received.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
with the Trust's accounting policies. ‘

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets

1.7

1.8

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Two schools in the multi academy trust occupy land and buildings provided to it by site trustees under
a mere licence (also referred to as a Church Supplemental Agreement) which contains a two year
notice period.

Having considered the fact that the schools occupy the land and such buildings as may be or may
come to be erected on it by a mere licence that transfers to the muiti academy trust no rights or
contro! over the site save that of occupying it at the will of the site trustees under the terms of the
relevant site trust, the Trustees have concluded that the value of the land and buildings occupied by
the schools will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the multi academy trust.

Expenditure on improvements to diocesan property occupied by the Trust is written off to the
Statement of financial activities as it is incurred.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long term leasehold buildings - 2% straight line

Long term leasehold land - 0.8% straight line
Leasehold improvements - 10% straight line
Furniture and fixtures - 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 25% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a resuit of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be

estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settie the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
Financial liabilities - trade creditors and accruals are financial instruments, and are méasured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial

liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Page 35



Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers.
Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service
costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They
are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability is also
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value

of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit

obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.15 Conversion to an academy trust

In the year, the conversion of two schools from state maintained schools to academy trusts involved
the transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the schools for £Nil consideration.
The substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it was accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from Foxyards Primary School and Hateley Heath
Academy to the Trust were valued at their fair value. The fair value was derived based on that of
equivalent items. The amounts were recognised under the appropriate Balance Sheet categories,
with a corresponding amount recognised in Donations - Transfer from Local Authority on conversion
in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general
funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 26.
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

1.17 Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August
2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial
valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted :

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds " funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 - 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ : £

Transferred on conversion 275,106 (3,408,924) 13,983,158 10,849,340 -

Donated fixed assets - - 94,912 94,912 -
Donations 90,493 - - 90,493 97,259
Capital Grants - - 629,057 629,057 1,448,648
Total 2021 365,599 (3,408,924) 14,707,127 11,663,802 1,545,907

Total 2020 97,109 150 1,448,648 1,545,907
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Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

4. Funding for the Trust's educational operations
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants -
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 10,852,922 10,852,922 8,458,656
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Start up grants - 233,590 233,590 150,000
Other DfE/ESFA grants 34,200 382,824 417,024 347,218
Pupil Premium - 1,168,171 1,168,171 954,868
Universal Infant Free School Meals grant - 433,209 433,209 312,750
Teachers pay grants - 127,402 127,402 113,248
Income from university placements - 359,991 359,991 319,995
34,200 13,558,109 13,592,309 10,656,735
Other Government grants
Local Authority grants - 1,201 ,_902 1,201,902 841,178
Expansion programme LAG funding - 107,228 107,228 103,654
- 1,309,130 1,309,130 944,832
Other income
Catering income 281 85,5635 85,816 113,776
Support to other schools 30,418 - 30,418 93,361
Maternity pooling reimbursement 32,396 - 32,396 25,667
School uniform and other income 92,189 - 92,189 127,297
155,284 85,535 240,819 360,101
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up and winter grant - 223,895 223,895 -
Coronavirus exceptional support - 20,601 20,601 245,787
- 244,496 244,496 245,787
189,484 15,197,270 15,386,754 12,207,455
260,340 11,947,115 12,207,455

Total 2020

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the trust's funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals and
Pupil Premium is no fonger reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines
under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified. The Trust
received £223,895 of funding for Covid-19 catch-up premiums and winter grants and this funding was
spent in full in 2020/21.
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5.

Income from other trading activities

Hire of premises
Training income

Total 2021

Total 2020

investment income

Short term deposits

Total 2021

Total 2020

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
12,691 12,691 20,680
2,736 2,736 5,118
15,427 15,427 25,798
25,798 25,798
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
193 193 1,823
193 193 1,823
1,823 1,823




Manor Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2021

7. Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds:
Direct costs - - 13,070 13,070 35,047
Trust's Educational Operations:
Direct costs 10,951,907 616,591 683,726 12,252,224 9,687,370
Support costs 2,049,555 339,820 2,218,213 4,607,588 3,962,709
Teaching school (note 32) 27,880 - 114,617 142,497 90,059
Total 2021 13,029,342 956,411 3,029,626 17,015,379 13,675,185
Total 2020 9,904,226 806,796 2,964,163 13,675,185
8. Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Educational Operations 12,252,224 4 607,588 16,859,812 13,550,079
Total 2021 12,252,224 4,607,588 16,859,812 13,550,079
Total 2020 9,687,370 3,962,709 13,550,079
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

LGPS finance costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies

Staff development and training
Technology costs

Educational consultancy
Other costs

Recruitment and other staff expenses

Total 2021

Total 2020

Educational Total Total
Operations funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
152,000 152,000 119,000
10,761,003 10,761,003 8,263,059
667,520 667,520 508,155
267,585 267,585 275,342
66,177 66,177 69,454
113,049 113,049 147,929
196,311 196,311 171,076
8,569 8,569 13,972
20,010 20,010 19,383
12,252,224 12,252,224 9,587,370
9,687,370 9,587,370
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8.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Catering

Staff development and other staff costs
Technology costs
Professional services
Other costs

étaff related insurance
Maintenance of premises
Cleaning and caretaking
Operating lease rentals
Rates

Security

Energy

Legal and professional
Other premises costs

Total 2021

Total 2020

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- other services

Educational Total Total
Operations funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
2,051,165 2,051,165 1,560,521
262,851 262,851 195,210
576,224 576,224 719,222
13,139 13,139 7,842
96,531 96,531 31,070
204,557 204,557 159,616
246,014 246,014 245,581
34,874 34,874 23,828
519,411 519,411 457,852
52,571 52,571 93,236
17,638 17,638 13,732
35,207 35,207 30,599
6,352 6,352 4,711
163,134 163,134 137,574
174,387 174,387 128,479
153,533 153,533 153,636
4,607,588 4,607,588 3,962,‘709
3,962,709 3,962,709
2021 2020
£ £
10,543 8,704
930,371 703,365
- 15,006
23,500 19,500
1,800 1,600
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10.  Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

Management
Teachers
Administration and support

2021 2020
£ £
9,310,650 7,291,045
821,728 635,912
2,764,522 1,977,269
12,896,900 9,904,226
2,390 1,950
130,052 -
13,029,342 9,906,176
130,052 -
2021 2020
No. No.
34 16
113 102
280 200
427

318
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10.

Staff (continued)

c¢. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80,000
In the band £90,001 - £100,000
In the band £100,001 - £110,000
In the band £110,001 - £120,000
In the band £130,001 - £140,000
In the band £140,001 - £150,000

d. Key management personnel

2021

No.

1
2

2
2
1

2020
No.

3

2
2
2

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior leadership team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to

the Trust was £780,885 (2020 - £1,551,236).
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1.

12.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust. The Chief Executive Officer only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the role Chief Executive Officer under their contracts of employment. The value of Trustees'
remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

A CIiff, Chief Executive Officer Remuneration 145 - 150 135 -140
Pension contributions paid 30-35 30-35

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2020 - £Nil).

Central services

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

financial services

educational support services

premises and site services

IT services

services provided by the CEO

PA support to CEO/Executive Leaders and Clerk of Governors for the Trust from January 2020
HR Transactional and School Admin Management from April 2020

The Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
A flat percentage of 5% of General Annual Grant income, or 7% for schools in additional measures.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
£ £
Manor Primary School 105,819 93,975
East Park Academy 127,110 123,534
Hill Avenue Academy 66,163 52,947
St Thomas' Church of England Primary Academy 42,956 37,469
St Alban's Church of England Primary Academy 57,521 51,739
Foley Infant School Academy 30,659 31,813
Brindley Heath Junior School Academy 48,188 46,239
Foxyards Primary School 59,957 -
Hateley Heath Academy 52,974 -
Total 591,347 437,716
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13.

14.

15.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative
to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees' and officers'
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2020 -
Additions

Donated fixed assets
Transferred on conversion

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation
At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2021

Net book value

At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Stocks

Goods for resale

Long-term
leasehold Leasehold
land and and site Furniture Computer
buildings improvements and fixtures equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
27,933,758 385,472 432,428 575,779 29,327,437
- 1,326,152 86,964 103,702 1,516,818
- - - 94,912 94,912
13,904,000 - 27,100 35,288 13,966,388
41,837,758 1,711,624 546,492 809,681 44,905,555
1,236,506 62,991 173,432 342,892 1,815,821
607,360 60,180 98,007 164,824 930,371
1,843,866 123,171 271,439 507,716 2,746,192
39,993,892 1,588,453 275,053 301,965 42,159,363
26,697,252 322,481 258,996 232,887 27,511,616
2021 2020
£ £
18,736 -
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16.

17.

Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Other loans
Trade creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2020
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts reieased from previous periods

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

2021 2020
£ £
22,346 56,926
83,630 347,917
5,607 5,606
1,459,392 2,014,034
1,570,975 2,424,483
2021 2020
£ £

36,021 -

- 557,357
947,573 711,216
983,594 1,268,573

2021 2020

£ £
179,276 221,936
249,726 179,276
(179,276)  (221,936)
249,726 179,276

At the balance sheet date the Trust was holding funds received in advance for Universal Infant Free

School Meals and Rates Relief.
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18.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2021 2020
£ £
Other loans 213,047 -
Included within the above are amounts falling due as follows:
2021 2020
£ £
Between one and two years
Other loans 46,855 -
Between two and five years
Other loans ' 61,399 -
Over five years
Other loans 104,793 -

Other loans is made up of CIF loans and Salix loans from the ESFA, repayable in annual instalments

over a period of between 2 - 8 years, being interest free.
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19. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 1,423,721 604,041 (32,646) (168,069) 1,827,047
Restricted general
funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) - 10,852,922 (10,565,809) (287,113) - -
Start Up Grant 25,467 233,590 (259,057) - - -
Pupil Premium - 1,168,171 (1,168,171) - - -
Teaching School - 129,477 (129,477) - - -
Other DfE Group
grants - 382,824 (382,824) - - -
Other government
grants - 181,207 (181,207) - - -
Other income - 85,535 (85,535) - - -
Teachers pay grant - 127,402 (127,402) - - -
Universal Infant Free
School Meals grant - 433,209 (433,209) - - -
Teachers pension
grant - 359,991 (359,991) - - -
Early years funding - 794,021 (794,021) - - -
SEN Higher Needs - 333,902 (333,902) - - -
COVID-Catch up
grant - 223,895 (223,895) - - -
Other COVID-19
grants - 20,601 (20,601) - - -
Loan inherited on
conversion - (130,924) - - - (130,924)
Pension reserve (7,736,000) (3,278,000) (829,000) - (1,492,000) (13,335,000)
(7,710,533) 11,917,823 (15,894,101) (287,113)  (1,492,000) (13,465,924)
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 : Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Capital surplus
transferred on
conversion 77,334 - - - - 77,334
Assets transferred on
conversion and
donated fixed
assets 25,408,730 13,983,158 (908,063) - - 38,483,825
Donated assets - 94,912 (23,729) - - 71,183
DfE Group capital
grants 2,277,793 629,057 (154,618) 111,749 - 2,863,981
Capital expenditure
from GAG 522,974 - (2,222) 343,433 - 864,185
Capital expenditure
from other funding 219,353 - - - - 219,353
28,506,184 14,707,127 (1,088,632) 455,182 - 42,579,861
Total Restricted .
funds 20,795,651 26,624,950 (16,982,733) 168,069  (1,492,000) 29,113,937
Total funds 22,219,372 27,228,991 (17,015,379) - (1,492,000) 30,940,984
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. These funds are likely to be used towards improving
the Trust estate.

Restricted funds

This fund represents grants and other income received for the Trust's operational activities and
development.

Teaching school
A surplus of £20,318 (2020 - £46,099) was made on teaching school activities in the year and is included

within unrestricted funds. With the Teaching School Hub operational from 1 September 2021, ali
unrestricted generated monies from the teaching school have been included within the unrestricted funds

of the Trust.
Pension reserve

The pension reserve included within restricted general funds represents the Trust's share of the pension
liability arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds
The fund represents grants received from the DfE and ESFA to carry out works of a capital nature.

Transfers

Transfers between funds relate to fixed assets purchased from GAG and unrestricted funds.
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted funds

General funds
Teaching School!

Restricted general
funds

General Annual Grant
(GAG)

~ Start Up Grant

Pupil Premium
Teaching School

Other DfE Group
grants

Other government
grants

Other income
Teachers pay grant

Universal Infant Free
School Meals grant

Pension reserve

Balance at

1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,209,054 384,383 (89,548)  (372,019) - 1,131,870
245,752 79,883 (33,784) - - 291,851
1,454,806 464,266 (123,332)  (372,019) - 1,423,721

89,427 8,458,656  (8,700,481) 162,398 - -
16,045 150,000 (140,578) - - 25,467

- 954,868 (954,868) - - -

- 56,275 (56,275) - - -

- 110,051 (110,051) - - -

- 276,747 (276,747) - - -

3,237 1,251,637  (1,262,061) 7,187 - -

- 433,243 (433,243) - - -

- 312,750 (312,750) - - -
(6,462,000) - (378,000) - (896,000) (7,736,000)
(6,353,291) 12,004,227 (12,625,054) 159,585 (896,000) (7,710,533)
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19. Statement of funds (continued)
Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed asset
funds
Capital surplus
transferred on
conversion 77,334 - - - - 77,334
Assets transferred on
conversion and
donated fixed assets 26,113,319 - (704,589) - - 25,408,730
DfE Group capital
grants 1,051,355 1,448,648 (222,210) - - 2,277,793
Capital expenditure
from GAG 522,974 - - - - 522,974
Capital expenditure
from other funding 6,919 - - 212,434 - 219,353
27,771,901 1,448,648 (926,799) 212,434 - 28,506,184
Total Restricted
funds 21,418610 13,452,875 (13,551,853) 372,019 (896,000) 20,795,651
Total funds 22,873,416 13,917,141 (13,675,185) - (896,000) 22,219,372
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

2021 2020
£ £
Manor Primary School 412,605 452 704
East Park Academy 684,513 645,534
Hill Avenue Academy 257,223 93,964
St Thomas' Church of England Primary Academy 30,202 17,162
St Alban's Church of England Primary Academy 37,795 38,113
Brindley Heath Junior School Academy 212,535 180,867
Foley Infant School Academy (136,647) 2,647
Central services (92,728) 18,197
Foxyards Primary School (55,217) -
Hateley Heath Academy 345,842 -
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 1,696,123 1,449,188
Restricted fixed asset fund 42,579,861 28,506,184
Pension reserve (13,335,000) (7,736,000)
Total 30,940,984 22,219,372

The following academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£

Foley Infant School Academy ’ | 136,647
Foxyards Primary School 55,217

Central services 92,728

The Trust is taking the following action to return the academies to surplus:

The Trust has completed a full staffing restructure at Foley Infant Schoo!l Academy to address the budget
deficit. The budget now balances by 2022/23 putting the school in a more positive financial position. The
Trust requested an ESFA SRMA review and asked the reviewer to particularly focus on Foley Infant
School Academy. All of the recommendations made during this very positive review have been

implemented.

The deficit at Foxyards Primary School is mainly due to the loan inherited on conversion. Costs were
also incurred on refurbishment work necessary to make the environment fit for purpose for the children
and spending on playground surfaces to eliminate significant health and safety risks.
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Central services have reported a deficit in the period due to substantial redundancy costs incurred
following the central team restructure. In addition, certain costs have been absorbed by central services
during the year that will be recharged to schools in 2021/22.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Manor Primary
School

East Park Academy
Hill Avenue
Academy

St Thomas' Church
of England
Primary Academy

St Alban's Church of
England Primary
Academy

Brindley Heath
Junior School
Academy

Foley Infant School
Academy

Central services

Foxyards Primary
School

Hateley Heath
Academy

Trust

10,957,119

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs

support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
2,422,969 341,711 185,757 467,013 3,417,450 3,175,580
2,660,104 368,600 188,633 302,000 3,519,337 3,445,956
1,186,585 158,583 118,626 149,691 1,613,485 1,527,194
691,539 108,056 68,873 136,185 1,004,653' 1,090,024
784,370 99,779 64,683 156,946 1,105,778 1,050,244
832,494 141,028 73,768 222,601 1,269,891 1,182,302
616,536 165,878 38,819 101,552 912,785 872,944
211,226 504,583 - 347,886 1,063,695 627,576

844,824 124,747 62,027 173,340 1,204,938 -

706,472 88,816 42,623 135,085 972,996 -
2,091,781 843,809 2,192,299 16,085,008 12,971,820
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20.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 42,159,363 42,159,363
Current assets 1,827,047 947,573 538,642 3,313,262
Creditors due within one year - (953,265) (30,329) (983,594)
Creditors due in more than one year - (125,232) (87,815) (213,047)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (13,335,000) - (13,335,000)
Total 1,827,047 (‘I3,465,924) 42,579,861 30,940,984

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 27,511,616 27,511,616
Current assets 1,423,721 1,176,676 1,111,932 3,712,329
Creditors due within one year - (1,151,209) (117,364) (1,268,573)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (7,736,000) - (7,736,000)
1,423,721 (7,710,5633) 28,506,184 22,219,372

Total
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21.

22,

23.

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income .

Bank interest receivable .

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Increase in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Assets transferred on conversion and donated fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed asset

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from new borrowing

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Bank interest receivable

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group
Capital funding received from others

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

2021 2020
£ £
10,213,612 241,956
930,371 703,365
(629,057) (1,448,648)
(193) (1,823)
3,278,000 -
829,000 378,000
(18,736) -
853,508  (1,393,050)
(321,000) 49,999
(13,930,376) -
- 15,006
1,205,129  (1,455,195)
2021 2020
£ £
118,144 -
118,144 -
2021 2020
£ £
193 1,823
(1,516,818)  (470,935)
629,057 1,394,596
- 54,052
(887,568) 979,536
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24. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

25. Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

At1
September
2020

£

1,287,846

Cash flows
£

435,705
(30,329)
(87,815)

2021 2020
£ £

1,723,551 1,287,846

1,723,551 1,287,846

Other non-
cash At 31
changes August 2021
£ £

- 1,723,551
(5,692) (36,021)
(125,232)  (213,047)
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26.

Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 January 2021 Foxyards Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Manor Multi Academy Trust from

Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on

conversion.

analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

~ The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Foxyards Primary School
Leasehold land and buiidings - - 4,862,000 4,862,000
Other tangible fixed assets - - 21,069 21,069
Cash - representing budget surplus on
LA funds 10,523 - - 10,523
Cash - representing budget surplus on
capital funds - - 16,770 16,770
Current liabilities
Equal pay loan liability - (130,924) - (130,924}
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit pension scheme deficit - (1,080,000) - (1,080,000)
10,523  (1,210,924) 4,899,839 3,699,438

Net assets/(liabilities)
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26. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

26. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 April 2021 Hateley Heath Academy converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Manor Multi Academy Trust from

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on

conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hateley Heath Academy
Leasehold land and buildings - - 9,042,000 9,042,000
Other tangible fixed assets - - 41,319 41,319
Cash - representing budget surplus on
LA funds 264,583 - - 264,583
Defined benefit pension scheme deficit - (2,198,000) - (2,198,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 264,583  (2,198,000) 9,083,319 7,149,902
27. Capital commitments
2021 2020
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
676,694 1,285,907

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets
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28.

Pension commitments

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Midlands Pension Fund and Staffordshire Pension Fund.
Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date} of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £988,000 (2020 - £778,000).

A copy of the valuation repbrt and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £1,183,000 (2020
- £940,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £988,000 (2020 - £788,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 195,000 (2020 - £152,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
19.5% per cent for employers and 5.5% - 12.5% per cent for employees.

As described in note 26 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2020

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.7 3.0
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation 29 22
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7 17

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 21.5 21.7
Females 23.9 24.0
Retiring in 20 years ’
Males 22.9 23.3
Females 25.8 257
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2021 2020

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% (404,000) (308,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 413,000 315,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 629,000 350,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (608,000) (337,000)
CPl rate +0.1% - 358,000 272,000
CPI rate -0.1% (351,000) (266,000)
Share of scheme assets
The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

2021 2020

£ £

Equities 4,487,000 2,229,000
Government bonds 746,000 505,000
Other bonds 346,000 103,000
Property 502,000 288,000
Cash and other liquid assets 252,000 219,000
Other 790,000 395,000
Total market value of assets 7,123,000 3,739,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £782,000 (2020 - £195,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2021 2020

£ £

Current service cost (1,665,000) (1,047,000)
Interest income 81,000 56,000
Interest cost (233,000) (175,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (1,817,000) (1,166,000)
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28.

29,

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2021 2020

£ £
At 1 September 11,475,000 9,027,000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 4,579,000 -
Current service cost 1,665,000 1,047,000
Interest cost 233,000 175,000
Employee contributions 195,000 152,000
Actuarial losses 2,325,000 1,087,000
Benefits paid (14,000) (13,000)
At 31 August 20,458,000 11,475,000
Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2021 2020

£ £
At 1 September 3,739,000 2,565,000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 1,301,000 -
Interest income 81,000 56,000
Actuarial gains 833,000 191,000
Employer contributions 988,000 788,000
Employee contributions 195,000 152,000
Benefits paid (14,000) (13,000)
At 31 August ’ 7,123,000 3,739,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020
£ £

Other
Not later than 1 year 2,506 10,543
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,550 31,639
6,056 42,182
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30. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member.

31. Related party transactions

A Coles, wife of D Coles, the Chair of Trustees is employed by the Trust as a Deputy Headteacher. A
Coles' appointment was made in open competition and D Coles was not involved in the decision making
process regarding appointment. A Coles is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and received no
special treatment as a result of her relationship to a Trustee.

The Church of England Central Education Trust (CECET) is a Member of Manor Multi Academy Trust.
CECET is the corporate body representing the Diocese of Lichfield. Purchases made from the Lichfield
Diocesan Board of Education in the year totalled £1,318, (2020 - £1,298).

No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees'
remuneration already disclosed in note 11.
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32.

Teaching school trading account

2021 2021
£ £
Income
Direct income
Grant and consultancy income ‘ 129,477
Other income
Other income ‘ 33,315
Bank interest 23
Total other income 33,338
Total income 162,815
Expenditure
Direct expenditure
Direct staff costs 44,116
Staff coaching and mentoring 10,000
Total direct expenditure 54,116
Other expenditure
Other staff costs 40,616
Other support costs 47,765
Total other expenditure 88,381
Total expenditure 142,497
Transfer to Manor Primary School unrestricted funds (312,169)
(Deficit)/surplus from all sources (291,851)
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020 291,851
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021 -

2020

103,170

32,856
132

32,988

55,473

55,473

25,173
9,413

34,586

2020

136,158

90,059

46,099
245,752

291,851
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